
par~icipa~ing in the. election and demonstrating 
their desire for an mdependent and democratic 
government of the whole of Korea. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND THIRTY..-FIFTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Wednesday, 8 December 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. P.-H. SPAAK (Belgium). 

105. Continuation of the discussion on 
the reports of the United Nations 
Temporary Commission on Korea 
(A/575, A/575/Add.i and A/575/ 
Add.2) and of the Interim Com
mittee of the General Assembly 
(A/583) 

Mr. HouDEI{ (Czechoslovakia) recalled that 
in 1947 his delegation had maintained that the 
problem of Korean independence did not fall 
within the competence of the United Nations, 
but should be decided by the United States 
and the ussn on the basis of the agreements 
between them. The Czechoslovak delegation 
had opposed the establishment of the Temporary 
Commission, ·which could only aggravate the 
problem and delay a final solution. The report 
Df that Commission had served to confirm the 
doubts and misgivings of the Czechoslovak 
delegation. 

Mr. Houdek went on to make a brief historical 
survey of the question. It had been decided in 
1\ioscow, in December 1945, to set up a United 
States USSR joint commission entrusted with the 
task of co-operation with the democratic parties in 
Korea for the purpose of establishing Korean 
independence and of laying the foundations for 
a provisional Korean democratic government. 
That Commission met between 20 March and 
8 May 1946 and adjourned sine die following 
differences of opinion between the two States on 
the question of the Korean organizations to be 
eonsulted. While the USSR wanted to establish 
relations with the democratic and social organ
izations, the United States proposed consultations 
with isolated groups and refused to consult with 
democratic and social groups such as the Korean 
Trade Union Federation and the All-Korean 
Peasants Union. In November 1946, the USSR 
put forward concrete proposals which might have 
provided a basis for a resumption of work by the 
Joint Commission, namely, that the latter should 
consult only with those organizations and parties 
which were not opposed to the Moscow decisions 
and which were willing to pledge themselves not 
to oppose them in future, nor to incite others to 
do so. The United States accepted that view on 
the 24 December 1946, but no meeting of the 
Joint Commission took place. On the contrary, 
<On 28 August 1947 the United States proposed 
that separate elections should be held in the two 
.zones. The USSR replied on 4 September 1947 
that such a proposal could only emphasize the 

de la Coree du Sud de participer aux elections et 
de temoigner de son desir d'un gouvernement 
independant et democratique pour toute la Coree. 

La seance est levee a 13 heures. 

DEUX-CENT-TRENTE-CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillol, Paris, 
le Mercredi 8 decembre 1948 a 15 heures. 

President: M.P.-H. SPAAK (Belgique). 

105. Suite de la discussion sur les 
rapports de la Commission tempo
raire des Nations Unies pour la 
Coree (A/575, A/575/Add.1 et 
A/575/Add.2) et de la Commission 
interimaire de l 'Assemblee gene
rale (A/583) 

M. HouDEK (Tchecoslovaquie) rappelle que sa 
delegation en 1947 avait soutenu que Ie probleme 
de l'independance de la Coree n'etait pas de la 
competence de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, 
car il devait etre resolu par les Etats-Unis et 
I'URSS en vertu de leurs accords. Ellc s'etait 
opposee a la creation de Ja Commission tempo
raire, qui ne pouvait qu'aggraver le probleme et 
retarder la solution definitive. Le rapport de cette 
Commission a confirme les doutes et les appre
hensions de la delegation tchCcoslovaque. 

L'cTJteur faisant un bref historique de Ia ques
tion indique qu'en decembre 1945, il avait etc 
decide a Moscou de creer nne commission mixte 
des Etats-Unis et de l'URSS, charge~ de cooperer 
avec les partis democratiques de la Core~, afin de 
realiser l'independance de la Coree et de preparer 
la base d'un gouvernement coreen democratique 
provisoire. Cette Commission se reunit entre le 
20 mars et le 8 mai 1946, et s'ajourna sine die a 
cette date, a la suite de divergences de vues entre 
les Etats-Unis et l'URSS sur le point de savoir 
quels organismes careens il fallait consulter. 
Tandis que l'URSS pretendait qu'il fal!ait entrer 
en rapports avec les partis democratiques et les 
organisations sociales, les Etats-Unis proposaient 
de consulter des groupes isoles et refusaient de 
consulter des groupes democratiques et sociaux 
tels que la Federation coreenne des syndicats et 
l'Union paysanne de toute la Coree. L'URSS fit 
en novembre 1946 des propositions concretes 
qui pouvaient scrvir de base a Ia reprise des 
travaux de la Commission mixte : cette derniere 
ne devait consulter que les organisations et Jes 
partis qui ne s'etaient pas opposes aux decisions 
de Moscou et qui s'engageraient a ne pas s'y 
opposer a l'avenir et a ne pas inciter d'autres a 
s'y opposer. Les Etats-Unis accepterent ce point 
de vue le 24 decembre 1946, mais la Commission 
mixte ne se reunit pas. Au contraire, le 28 aout 
1947, les Etats-Unis proposerent que des elections 
scparees eussent lieu dans les deux zones. L'URSS 
repondit, le 4 septembre 1947, que cette propo
sition ne pouvait qu'accentuer lc partage de la 

1003 



division of Korea at a time when it was vital 
that it should remain united. Despite the ten
dency shown by the United States to follow an 
independent and selfish policy in Korea, the USSR 
consented to form a Joint Commission together 
with the United States on condition that the 
Commission should assist in the formation of an 
all-Korean government and that United States and 
CSSR troops should be withdrawn from Korean 
territory. Once formed, however, the Commission 
disregarded the proposals of the USSR and 
suggested that a United Nations Commission 
should be set up. The Czechoslovak delegation 
opposed the formation of a Temporary Commission 
for which there were no grounds from the very 
start, and, as subsequent events proved, held out 
no hope of a solution of the problem. For that 
reason, the Czechoslovak delegation supported 
the USSR proposal to abolish the United Nations 
Temporary Commission on Korea. 

As an example of the atmosphere prevalent in 
South Korea at the time of the elections, Mr. 
Houdek quoted a statement by Mr. Min Won Sik, 
director of the Korean newspaper The Seoul Times 
which was reproduced on page 156 of volume II I 
gf the report of the Temporary Commission. It 
appeared from that statement that all Koreans 
with progressive ideas or opposed to the right
wing parties were labelled communists and had 
been forced underground. There could be no 
liberty in South Korea, since the United States 
Army was in control and the inhabitants were 
without legal protection. The Czechoslovak dele
gation considered that that statement was 
sufficient evidence of the atmosphere in which the 
elections took place in South Korea. 

Mr. Houdek said that, both in 1947 and 1948, his 
delegation had asked that representatives of the 
Korean people should take part in the discussions. 
It was not surprising that the representatives of 
South Korea should have been able to attack the 
regime of North Korea, since no representative of 
North Korea had been present at the discussions. 
\Vhat was, however, surprising, was the fact that 
it was precisely the self-styled champions of 
freedom of speech who opposed the participation 
of North Korea in the present discussions. 

There was another and no less significant 
fact. In 1947, the USSR proposal that all 
occupying forces should be withdrawn from Korea 
simultaneously had been rejected. Now the 
situation was simpler because the USSR, in res
ponse to a request made on 10 September 1948 by 
the Supreme National Assembly of Korea had 
decided on 20 September 1948 to evacuate Soviet 
troops from North Korea by 1 January 1949. 
While the USSR had been able to secure the 
necessary conditions for the withdrawal of its 
troops and had thus made it possible for the 
people of North Korea to decide the form of their 
future government without the slightest tr~ce_ of 
foreign interference, the Temporary Comm1ss1~n 
had been unable to ensure similar conditions 1n 

Coree, alors qu'il etait d'importance vitale que
Ia Coree restat unie. Malgre la tendance montree
par les Etats-Unis de poursuivre une politique
independante et egoiste en Coree, l'URSS accepta 
de former une commission mixte, de concert 
avec les Etats-Unis, sous Ia condition que cette 
commission preterait son aide a Ia formation du 
gouvernement de Ia Coree entiere et que les. 
troupes des Etats-Unis et de l'URSS seraient 
retirees du territoire coreen. Mais cette commission .. 
des qu'elle fut formee, ignora les propositions. 
de l'URSS et, au contraire, suggera la creatioll! 
d'une commission des Nations Unies. La dele
gation tchecoslovaque prit position contre 1~ 
formation d'une commission temporaire, qui ne se 
justifiait pas par son origine et qui n'offrait. 
ainsi que les evenements ulterieurs l'ont prouve,. 
aucun espoir de solution du probleme. C'est 
pourquoi la delegation tchecoslovaque appuie la 
proposition de l'URSS tendant a abolir la Commis
sion temporaire des Nations Unies pour la Coree. 

A titre d'excmple de !'atmosphere qui regnait 
en Coree du Sud au moment des elections .. 
M. Houdek donne lecture d'une declaration de 
M. Min Won Sik, directeur du journal coreen 
Le Temps de Seoul, reproduite a Ia page 156. 
(texte anglais) du volume III du rapport de la 
Commission temporaire1 • 11 ressort de Ia decla
ration de cet homme independant que tous Ies. 
Coreens qui ont des idees progressistes ou qui 
s'opposent aux partis de droite sont taxes de 
communisme et doivent prendre le maquis. H 
n'y a pas de liberte en Coree du Sud, car l'armee 
des Etats-Unis y exerce le controle et aucune loi ne 
protege les citoyens. Le representant de Ia Tche
coslovaquie estime que cette declaration montre 
suffisamment dans queUe atmosphere se sont 
deroulees les elections en Coree du Sud. 

L'orateur declare que, cette annee commc 
l'annee derniere, sa delegation a demande que
les representants du peuple coreen puissent 
participer aux debats. II n'est pas etonnant que 
les representants de la Coree du Sud aient pu 
attaquer le regime de la Coree du Nord, car aucun: 
representant de cette partie de la Coree n'etait 
present aux debats. Mais ce qui est etonnant,. 
c'est de constater que ce sont les pretendus. 
champions de Ja liberte de parole qui s'opposent 
a la participation de Ia Coree du Nord aux debats 
actuels. 

U n autre fait est non moins significatif. En 194 7 .. 
Ia proposition de l'URSS tendant a retirer si~ul
tanement de Coree toutes les troupes d'occupatwn 
a ete rejetee. Cette annee, Ia situation est plus 
simple car l'URSS a decide, le 20 septembre 1948, 
en reponse a une demande de l' Assemblee popu
laire supreme de Ia Coree en date du 10 septembre. 
d'evacuer ses troupes de Ia Coree du Nord au_ 
1 er janvier 1949. Alors que l'URSS a pu realiser 
les conditions necessaires au retrait de ses troupes. 
et a ainsi donne a la population de Ia Coree du. 
Nord la possibilite de decider de la forme de soiL 
futur gouvernement sans le moi?d:e soupl(on 
d'immixtion etrangere, la Commrsswn tempo
mire des Nations Unies n'a pas ete en mesure: 
d'assurer des conditions semblables en Con~e du. 

1 Ce document n'est pas encore sorti en fran~ais. 

1004 



'South, Korea, since it considered that the 
·occupying forces should not be withdrawn until 
<Circumstances permitted. 

He was of the opinion that the representatives 
of North Korea had not been given a hearing 
b.ecause most of the States belonging to the majo
nty feared the consequences of that measure. 

Mr. CICMIL (Yugoslavia) recalled the statement 
made by the Yugoslav delegation in 1947 that 
the decision to set up a Temporary Commission 
was directed against the interests of Korea and 
against the maintenance of peace in that part 
of the world. Facts had confirmed the 
v:ew of the Yugoslav delegation. The repre
sentative of the Ukraine had been justified in the 
statement he made in 1947 that the Commission 
would have one purpose only : that of promoting 
the interests of the United States in Korea. To 
understand the problem, it must be remembered 
that the United States forces entered Korea in 
S September 1945 without striking a single blow 
because the Japanese forces had already been 
,defeated by the Korean people. Before the arrival 
<Of American troops, the people had proclaimed in 
Seoul a People's Republic of Korea, which had 
immediately restored peace and internal order. 
The United States occupation forces suppressed 
the People's Committees which exercised power 
in Korea, took control and handed over admin
istrative powers to the former Japanese admin
istration. Popular demonstrations?, took place 
in Seoul, but the demands put forward went 
.unheeded. The United States military autho
rities then had recourse to the appointment of a 
Korean Advisory Council composed of 11 reaction
ary collaborators headed by the notorious Kim 
Song Soo. That Council made every efiort to 
turn Southern Korea into a stronghold and colony 
of the Americans. The United States did not 
abolish the Japanese colonial regime, but merely 
transformed it for its own ends. All property 
confiscated by the Japanese in Korea, a large part 
Df the land, and commercial and industrial 
undertakings were regarded as war booty by the 
United States and were subsequently distributed 
to Korean capitalist concerns. Thus the New 
Asia Company which was created was in no way 
different from the previous Japanese firms. 

In both the political and economic fields the 
United States exercised similar pressure. To 
strengthen the position of the Korean reactionaries 
a parody of an election was held in 1946. Out of 
'90 deputies, 45 were appointed by the United 
States while 45 others were elected by indirect 
voting. It was to be noted that 70 per cent of 
the electors abstained from voting and of the 
·90 deputies, 27 were former collaborators, 17 
prominent industrialists and 28 big landowners. 
It was, therefore, obvious that the Korean people 
had not taken part in the elections. Only 57 
deputies took part in the work of that Assembly 
and, when the Temporary Commission arrived, a 
certain number left the Assembly in protest. 
What was more, the remnants of that parliament 
had little or no power. The Temporary Com
mission was of the opinion that the presence of 

Sud, puisqu'elle est d'avis que les troupes d'occu
pation ne doivent en etre retirees que lorsquc lcs 
conditions le permettront. 

Le representant de Ia Tchecoslovaquie estimc 
que si les representants de Ia Coree du Nord n'ont 
pas etc entendus, c'est parce que la plupart des 
Etats faisant partie de Ia majorite craignent de 
les entendre. 

M. CICMIL (Yougoslavie) rappelle que, en 1947, 
Ia delegation yougoslave avait declare que la 
decision de creer une Commission temporaire 
ctait dirigee contre !'interet de la Coree et contre 
le maintien de la paix dans cette partie du monde. 
Les faits ont confirme ce point de vue que !a 
delegation yougoslave maintient. II constatc 
que le representant de la RSS d'Ukraine etait 
en droit, en 1947, de declarer que cette commission 
n'aurait qu'un but : favoriser Ia realisation des 
inten~ts des Etats-Unis en Coree. Pour comprendre 
le probleme, il faut se rappeler que les troupes des 
Etats-Unis etaient entrees en Coree lc 8 sep
tembre 1945 sans coup ferir, car les troupes 
japonaises avaient deja ete battues par le peuple 
coreen. Avant !'entree des troupes amcricaines, 
le peuple avait proclame a Seoul la Republique 
populaire de Coree, qui avait immediatement 
assure Ia paix et l'ordre interieur. Les forces 
d'occupation des Etats-Unis supprimerent les 
Comites populaires qui exen;aient le pouvoir en 
Coree, prirent le pouvoir et confierent les fonctions 
d'administration a l'ancienne administration japo
naise. Des manifestations populaires eurent lieu 
a Seoul, mais les revendications ne furent pas 
ecoutees. Les antorites militaires des Etats-Unis 
opererent cependant une manceuvre en nommant 
un Conseil consultatif careen compose de 11 reac
tionnaires collaborateurs, ayant a leur tete le 
notoire Kim Song Soo. Ce comite s'employa de 
son mieux a faire de Ia Coree du Sud une place 
d'armes et une colonie americaines. Les Etats
Unis n'abolirent pas le regime colonial japonais, 
ils le transformerent simplement a leur profit. 
Tons les biens qui avaient ete confisques par les 
Japonais en Coree, une grosse partie de la terre, 
les entreprises commerciales et industrielles furent 
consideres comme du butin de guerre par lcs 
Etats-Unis et distribues ensuite a des socictcs 
capitalistes coreennes. II en fut ainsi par exemple 
de Ia creation de Ia societe commerciale " Nouvelle 
Asie >> qui ne difiere pas des Societes commercialcs 
japonaiscs anterieures. 

Aussi bien dans le domaine politique que dans 
le domaine economique, les Etats-Unis exercerent 
une egale pression. Pour fortifier les rcactionnaircs 
coreens, on se livra en 1946 a nne parodic d'clcc
tions. Sur 90 deputes, 45 furent nommes par les 
Etats-Unis et 45 autres elus au sufirage indirect. 
II faut remarquer que 70 pour 100 du corps 
electoral s'abstint de voter et que sur les 90 dcpn· 
tes il y avait 27 anciens collaborateurs, 17 gros 
industriels et 28 grands proprietairt>s terriens. 
II est done evident que le peuple con~en n'a pas 
pris part a ces elections. Cinquante-sept deputes 
seulemcnt participerent aux travaux de cette 
Assemblee et, lors de l'arrivee de la Commission 
temporaire, un certain nombre de ceux-ci 
quitterent l' Assemblt~e en signe de protestation. 
De plus, ce parlement reduit n'avait pratiquement 
aucun pouvoir. La Commission temporaire estime 

1005 



United States officials in the central administration 
\YC::lkentcl even more the authority of t he Govern
J11'~nt of South Korea. Thus, the legislative and 
executive power was in fact in the hands of the 
C!!ited Slates. 

I e ~I arch, 19-17, a number of democratic leaders 
lnll bee n arrested by the United States autho
rit ies. In August of the same year, when the 
K:,rco.n,, learned that the United States had 
decided lo abandon the Moscow Declaration as 
a basis for t he solution of the Korean question, 
fresh reprisals had taken place against the pro
gressiYc a nd democratic parties. In October 
1 \:l -17 thae \\We, in South Korea, 28,000 persons 
in prison for political reasons, more t han at any 
time during the Japanese occupation. A dele
gation from the ·world F ederation of Trade Unions 
WQS unable to fulfil its task when visiting Korea in 
19n on account of persecution by the United 
States authoriti:::s. When the delegation returned 
to Europe, ~Ir. Saillant, Secretary-General of the 
Federation, stated that the regime in South Korea 
was an arbitrary and harsh regime under the 
control of the United States, that prisons were 
full to overflowing, that 33,000 policemen and 
23,000 gendarmes had been called up to maintain 
order, that democratic organizations had been 
ct :sbanded and that youth terrorist organizations 
were active. There had been many demon
strations and protests against the division of 
Korea and the transformation of South Korea 
into a colony of the United States. Clashes 
bcbYeen the people and the police were a daily 
occurrence. More than 240 persons had been 
killed •and 550 injured between 9 February and 
9 May 19-18. The elections which, according to 
the decision of th~ Gemral Assembly, should have 
bC'en held on 31 March, 1948, were postponed 
until 10 May. Neither the Korean people nor the 
representatives of the Temporary Commission had 
any illusions concerning the methods employed in 
preparing for those elections, the results of which 
had been nullified by the decision of the Interim 
Committee of the General Assembly. In deciding 
that elections could be held in South Korea, the 
Interim Committee had in fact usurped the 
functions of the G~nera! Assembly. 

The Interim Committee, which had been estab
lishd illegu.Uy, altered the meaning of the 
General Assembly resolution 112 (II) of 14 No
vember 1947 by its resolution of 26 February 1948 
(A /AC.lS/32) . By virtue of the latter resolution, 
the Temporary Commission assumed the right to 
control the elections in South Korea, but was 
unable t o obtain the United States' consent to 
the removal of collaborators and traitors from the 
electoral lists because the United States military 
authorities claimed that it was impossible to 
nrify the past activities of electors. 

R ;:vicwing the conditions u 'ld~e r which ~he 
elections took place, the Yugoslav representative 
pointed out that the d~mo~ratic leaders had either 
been arrested or were m flight, that the moderate 
parties had refuse~ . t? vot: in order to avoid 
accentuating the diVISion beLween the nort~ and 
south of the country, and that on~y the part1~s of 
the extreme right had taken part m the electiOns, 

que la presence de fonctionnaires des Eta ts-Unis 
dans }'administration centrale contribuait encore 
a reduire J'autorite du Gouvernement en Coree 
du Sud. Ainsi les pouvoirs legislatif et executif 
appartenaient en fait aux Etats-Unis. 

L'orateur indique en outre que, en mars 1947, 
beaucoup de chefs democratiques furent arretes 
par les autorites americaines. En aout de la meme 
annee, quand le peuple coreen apprit que les 
Etats-Unis avaient decide de ne plus se fonder sur 
la Declaration de Nloscou pour resoudre la question 
de Coree, de nouvelles represailles eurcnt lieu 
centre les partis progressistes et democratiques. 
En octohre 1947, il y avait en Coree du Sud 
28.000 personnes en prison pour raisons politiques, 
chiffre qui n'avait jamais etc atteint sous !'occu
pat ion japonaise. Une delegation de la Federation 
syndicale mondiale, ne put remplir sa tache 
lorsqu'ellc se rendit en Coree en 1947, car elle fut 
brimee par Ies autorites des Etats-Unis. Lors. 
de son retour en Europe, M:. Saillant , Secretaire 
general de la Federation, declara qu'il regnait 
en Coree du Sud un regime arbitraire et sauvage 
sous le controle des Etats-Unis. Lorsque la Com
mission temporaire se rendit en Coree en 1948, 
elle put constater que les prisons etaicnt bondees, 
que 33.000 policiers et 23.000 gendarmes avaient 
ete reqnis pour maintcnir l'ordre, que les organi
sations democratiques avaient ete dissoutcs et 
que les organisations terrorhtes de la jeunesse 
etaient a I' reuvre. De nombreuses demonstrations 
et des protestations eurent lieu contre la division 
de la Coree et la transformation de la Coree du 
Sud en ~ne cclonie des Etats-Unis. D.:s conflits 
quotidiens eclataient entre Je peup!e et la police. 
Du 9 fevrier au 9 mai 1948, on compt e plus de 
240 tues et 550 blesses. Les elections qui devaient, 
selon la decision de l' Assemblee generale, a voir 
lieu le 31 mars 194.8, furent reculees au 10 mai. 
Ni le peuple careen, ni les representants de la 
Commission temporaire ne se fircnt d'illusion 
sur les ffi(~thodes qui furent employees pour 
proceder a ces elections, dont les resultats furent 
rcndus illusoircs par la decision de h Commission 
interimaire de l'Assemblee generale. La Commis
sion interimaire, en effet, en decidant que les 
elections pourraient etre tenues dans la Coree 
du Sud, u:mrpa les fonctions de l'Assemblee 
generale. 

Cette Commission interimaire, dont la consti
tution memc etait illegale, changea, par sa reso
lution du 26 fevrier 1948 (A/AC.18 f3'2) le sens de 
la resolution 112 (II) de l'Assemblee en date du 
14 novembre 1947. En vertu de cette resolution 
du 26 fevrier, la Commission temporaire s'arrogea 
le droit de controler les elections en Coree du Sud, 
rnais elle n' obtint pas des autorites americaines 
qu'eJl es fassent rayer des listes electorales les 
noms des collaborateurs et des traltres, car les 
auto rites militaires americaines estimaient qu' il 
etait pretendument impossible de verifier les 
antecedents des electeurs. 

Le representant de la Yougoslavie, pa~s: en 
revue les conditions dans lesquelles s opererent 
les elections. II fait remarquer que 1es chefs dem?
cratiques etaient arretes ou en fuite, que les part1s 
moderes refuserent de prendre part au vote afin 
de ne pas accentuer le partage entre le nord et 
le sud du pays et que seuls les partis d'extreme 
droite prirent part aux elections comme, par 

1006 



as, for example, the party of Hancrlcok the best 
• b ' 

orgamzed right->Ying party, which, the report of 
the Temporary Commission noted, had the support 
of t he IHg landowners and the police. Moreover, 
t he United St ates authorities had feared that a 
l:lrge number of Koreans would boycott the 
eic-d ions, _ a_nd Gener:1l Hodge had accordingly 
announceci lil a declaration of 3 March 1948 that 
all who failed to vote would be outlawed. The 
el ections had been supervised by 60,000 armed 
poliee and bv a million volunteers who had 
provok<? d mar1v disturbances. ' 

Des pitc t err;rism and pressure, 20 per cent of 
th~ popubtion had not registered on electoral 
lists, while 5 per cent of t hose registered had failed 
to vot o:- a:1d 9 p::r cent of those who had actually 
Y0ted had cast blank voting papers. The Tempor
ary Commission nevertheless concluded that the 
preparations for the elections in South Korea took 
place in an atmosphere of reasonable freedom. 
Tlwt might be the opinion of the United States 
and the police, but it was certainly not t hat of 
the K orean p eople. The National Assembly was 
not representative of the people as a whole, but 
was t he docile instrument of United States policy. 
\Vhen the Grwernment of South Korea was set 
up, 92 deputies failed to appear and of the 78 
dqn~ties present, 28 left the assembly hail. The 
Guvernrr.ent of South Korea therefore repre
sented no one bat the United States, which was 
striving to give the impression that t hat govern
m~nt reflect t: d the freely-expressed will of the 
Korean people . 

:,!f. Houdek aH~mpted to show the economic 
pli :;;ht of Sent h Korea. No effective reforms, 
whether political, social or economic, had been 
c2rried cut . The peasants were over-burdened 
with taxes. Between De~ember 1945 and January 
1948 prices had multiplied 21 times, and salaries 
only osven times. There were two million unem
ployed in Sout h Korea and indu.strial production 
w:ts 20 p:::r u~nt below the pre-war level. As 
lvng as Koren. was divided, its economy wou.ld 
remain chaotic. Such was the situation created 
in Kcrca by the United States as revealed by the 
rt-port of the Temporary Commission, although 
th:~t report attempted to give the opposite 
impression. There was only one solution to the 
problem : the United States must withdraw its 
troop:; from South Korea just as the USSR had 
withdrawn its t roops from North Korea. 

The people of both zones of Korea had made 
their de~ire fo r unity plain at the time of the 
elections to t he Constituent Assembly on 12 
August 1948 : 77.5 per cent of t he electors of 
South Korea and 99 per cent of the electors of 
North Korea had taken part in the elections 
which had culminated in the fo rmation of a 
Constitu.ent Assembly. That Assembly had 
aGopted a constit ution and appointed a popular 
government. The Korean people had established 
their own State in moral and political unity. On 
10 September, the National Assembly had re
quested the United States and the USSR to 
withdraw their forces of occupation. The USSR 
had given a favourable reply, whereas the United 
States still maintained its forces in South Korea. 
The people of Korea had proved that t hey >vere 
capable of governing their country. An agrarian 

exemple, le parti Hangkok, lc mieux orgamse 
des partis de droite qui, d'apres le rapport de la 
Commission temporaire, est soutenu par les grands 
proprietaircs terriens et par la police. De plus, 
les autorites americaines craignant qu'un grand 
nombre de Corcens nc boycottent b; elections, 
le general Hodge fit comprcndre dans m:e decla
ration, le 3 mars 1 9'!8, que to us ceux qui ne 
votcraient pas seraieut mis hors la loi. Les Clecticns 
furent contrcllees par GO.OOO policiers annes et 
un million de volontaircs, qui furent a l'oriuine 
de bien des dcsordres. "' 

l\lalgre lcs mesures de terreur et de pression, 
20 pour 100 de la popt:lation ne s'inscrivirent pas 
sur les listes electorales ; 5 pour 100 des inscrits 
ne voterent pas et 9 pour 100 des votan: s remirent 
d€s bulletins blancs. :Malgre ceb, la Commission 
temparairc a conclu que les preparatifs electoraux 
de Ia Coree du Sud se sent deroules dans une 
atmosphere de liberte raisonnab!e. Cette opinion 
peut etre celle des Etats-Unis et de la police, 
mais elle n'est certainement pas celle du peuple 
coreen. L'Assemblee nationale n'est pas represen
tative du pcuple tout entier. Elle est l'instrument 
docile de la politique des Etats-Unis. Il faut ajoutcr 
que, lors de la nomination du Gouvernernent de la 
Coree du Sud, 92 deputes ne vinrent pas en seance 
et, sur lcs 78 deputes presents, 28 quittcrent 
la salle. L~ gouvcrnernent de la Coree du Sud 
ne represcnte done rien, si ce n'est les Etats-Unis 
qui s'efforcent de faire croire que ce gouvcrnement 
reflete la volonte librement exprimce du peuple 
coreen. 

L'orateur s'attache ensuite a demontrer le 
caractere lamentable de b situation economique 
en Coree du Sud. Aucune reforme rcelle, poliLique, 
sociale ou economique, n'a ete eff;:;ctuce. Les 
paysans sont accables d'impots. De deccmbre 
1945 a janvier 1948, l2s prix ont augmente 21 fois 
alors que les salaires n'ont ete multiplies que par 
sept. On compte deux millions de chomeurs en 
Coree du Sud et Ia production industrid le est 
inferieure de 20 pour 100 a ce qu'ellc etait avant 
s.merrc. Ta:1t que subsistera Ja diYisio;l de la 
Coree, !'economic de ce pays sera chaotique. Ce 
tableau de la situation creee en Coree du Sud 
par les Etats-Unis se degage de la lecture du 
rapport de la Commission temparaire, bien que 
celle-ci se soit efforcee d'affirrner le contraire. 
Une seule solution s'impose : les Etats-Unis 
doivent retirer leurs t roupes de la Coree du Sud, 
comme l'URSS le fait en Coree du Nord. 

Le representant de la Yougoslavic constate que 
Ia population des deux zones de Coree a manifcstc 
sa volonte d'unite lors des elections pour b Consti
tuante, le 12 aout 1948 ; 77.5 pour 100 des elec
teurs de la Coree du Sud et 99 pour 100 des e!ec
teurs de la Coree du Nord prirent part aux elec
tions, qui aboutirent a la formation d'un_e 
Assemblee constituante qui adopta une consti
tution et nomma un gouverncrnent populuire. 
Ainsi, le pcuple corcen a cree son Etat, dans 
!'unite morale et politique. L'Assembke populaire 
demanda, le 10 septembre, aux f:tat s-Unis et a 
l'URSS de retirer leurs troupes d'occupation. 
On sait que l'URSS rcpondit favorabkment, 
tandis que les Etats-Unis maintiennent toujours 
leurs troupes en Coree du Sud. Lc peuple de Coree 
prouva qu'il etait capable de diriger son pays. 
Une reforme agraire accorda Ja proprietc de Ia 

1007 



reform act had transferred ownership of the land 
to those who cultivated it. A national economy 
plan had been put into effect ; Jaws on social 
insurance had been enacted and educational 
reforms had completed the task of national re
generation. The USSR had begun the withdrawal 
of its troops on 15 October to ensure that all 
would have left by 1 January 1949. The United 
States, on the other hand, had stated on the 
20 September that the withdrawal of troops was 
only one aspect of the solution of the problem of 
Korea. The United States was thus anxious to 
profit by its majority in the General Assembly of 
the United Nations in order to perpetuate the 
present situation into Korea. As in Greece, the 
United States had created an impotent govern
ment which was entirely dependent upon it and 
which was thus obliged, in order to remain in 
power, to request the United States to maintain 
its forces in Korea. 

The representative of Yugoslavia thought the 
sole question at issue in Korea was that of the 
withdrawal of troops. As long as South Korea 
remained under occupation, there was no possi
bi]jty, as Mr. Marshall had stated in the General 
Assembly, of creating an independent and united 
Korea with a constitutional government elected 
by the Koreans themselves by genuinely free 
elections. The withdrawal of USSR troops from 
:North Korea showed the course which should be 
followed to enable Korea to regain its national 
sovereignty. Yugoslavia could accept only a 
solution compatible with the interests of the 
Korean people, namely, the withdrawal of the 
forces of occupation to enable the Korean people 
to organize and administer the country as an 
independent and sovereign State, which might 
become a Member of the United Nations. The 
Yugoslav delegation therefore supported the 
resolution of the USSR (A fC.l/427) which was 
the only way to settle the question of the inde
pendence and unity of Korea. 

:Ur. KrsELEV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) noted that the United Nations Tempor
ary Commission on Korea aimed to prove that 
the elections of 10 May 1948 had taken place in 
normal conditions, and were the legal expression 
of the will of the voters. The report even claimed 
that the democratic rights of freedom of speech 
of the Press and of assembly had been guaranteed. 
In order to check whether the Temporary Com
mission's conclusions were accurate, however, its 
record must be examined. That Commission, 
realizing that the political parties and the Korean 
people as a whole were opposed to elections for the 
establishment of a South Korean government, had 
consulted the Interim Committee of the General 
Assembly. The United States representative 
on that Committee had expressed the wish that 
elections should be held in South Korea with a 
view to the establishment of a National Assembly, 
and had put forward a resolutio~ giving t~e 
Temporary Commission power to Implement m 
South Korea the mandate conferred on it by the 
General Assembly for the whole of Korea. T~at 
resolution had been adopted ~y 31 votes to~· with 
11 abstentions. The Canadian representative on 
the Interim Committee had declared that he was 

terre a ceux qui Ia cultivent. Un plan de l'economie 
populaire fut mis sur pied, des lois sur les assu
rances sociales furent promulguees et des reformes 
en matiere d'education completerent Ia tache de 
renovation nationale. L'URSS commenc;a le 
retrait de ses troupes le 15 octobre, afin qu'il soit 
termine au 1er janvier 1949. Par contre, les 
Etats-Unis ont declare, le 20 septembre, que le 
retrait des troupes n'est qu'un des elements de ]a 
solution du probleme de Coree. Ainsi, Jes Etats
Unis veulent profiter de leur majorite a l'Assem
blee generale de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
pour transformer la situation actuelle en Coree 
en situation permanente. Comme en Grece, les 
Etats-Unis ont cree un gouvernement impuissant 
qui doit s'appuyer sur eux et doit done, pour se 
maintenir au pouvoir, demander aux Etats-Unis 
de garder ses troupes en Coree. 

Le representant de Ja Yougoslavic estime que 
la seule question qui se pose en Coree est celle 
du retrait des troupes. Tant que Ja Coree du 
Sud restera occupee, il ne sera pas possible, comme 
le declarait l\1. Marshall a I' Assemblee generale, 
de creer unc Coree independante ct unifiee et 
un gouvernement constitutionnel choisi par les 
Careens eux-memes, apres des elections vraiment 
libres. Le retrait des troupes de I'URSS de la 
Coree du Nord montre la voie dans laquelle il 
faut s'engager pour permettre a Ia Coree de 
reconquerir sa souverainete nationale. La Yougo
slavie ne pent accepter d'autre solution que celle 
correspondant aux interets du peuple con~e n, 
a savoir : le retrait de toutes les troupes d'occu
pation de fa<;on a permettre au peuple careen 
de s'organiser et d'administrer son pays en tant 
qu'Etat independant et souverain qui puisse 
devenir Membre de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. La delegation yougoslave appuie done la 
proposition de l'URSS (AfC.l /427) qui, seule, 
permettra de resoudre la question de J'indepen
dance et de l'unite de Ia Coree. 

M. KrsSELEV (Repub1ique socialistc sovietique 
de Bielorussie) constate que le rapport de la 
Commission temporaire des Nations Unies pour 
Ia Coree tend a prouver que les elections du 
10 mai 1948 se sont deroulees d'une fa<;on correcte 
et sont !'expression exacte de Ia volonte des 
electeurs. Le rapport pretend meme qu~ Jes 
conditions garantissant 1es droits democratlques 
de la liberte de parole, de presse et de reunion 
avaient ete remplies. II convient, cependant, 
d'examiner l'histoire de la Commission tempo
mire pour verifier si ses conclusions sont exaetes. 
La Commission temporaire, s'etant rendu compte 
que les partis politiques et le peuple coreen, er_l 
general, s'opposaient aux elections tendant a 
former un aouvernement de la Coree du Sud, 

b ' . . 
demanda un avis a Ia Commission intenma1re 
de l' Assemblee aenerale. A la Commission inte-

b . . 

rimaire, le representant des Etats-Ums man.I-
festa le desir que les elections aient lieu en Cor~e 
du Sud en vue de constituer une Assemblce 
nationale. Il proposa une resolution donn3:nt 
pleins pouvoirs a la Commission ternpora1r~ 
pour remplir en Coree du Sud le ~an~at. qm 
lui avait ete con fie par I' Assemblee generale, 
relativement a !'ensemble de la Coree. Cette 

1008 



not convinced that the majority of the people in 
South Korea supported the United States plan. 
The Norwegian representative had been of the 
opinion that, in adopting the United States plan, 
the Interim Committee would be exceeding the 
powers vested in it by the General Assembly. The 
representatives of the Scandinavian countries had 
thought that the Korean problem could not be 
solved in the absence of the USSR. Mr. Menon, 
Chairman of the Temporary Commission, had 
stated before the Interim Committee that the 
only advocates of the establishment of a National 
Assembly in South Korea were Messrs. 
Syngman Rhee and Kim Sing Koo, both repre
sentatives of the big landowners and Korean 
businessmen. He had stressed that many moder
ates of both left and right were opposed to 
~lections which could only result in accentuating 
the division of Korea. The Chairman of the 
Temporary Commission had added that the 
Commission had received complaints concerning 
its co-operation with the Hangkok party, and 
complaints to the efTect that the inhabitants of 
South Korea did not consider that the elections 
would be free, because the country was occupied 
by United States troops. 

Mr. Kiselev pointed out, further, that, on the 
eve of the elections, the United States, in co
operation with Korean reactionaries, had resorted 
to political pressure of all kinds. Patriots had 
been imprisoned, 500 men had been killed, 60,000 
police and countless so-called volunteers of the 
extreme right wing had been mobilized. In 
Seoul, martial law had been proclaimed. 

On 10 May 1948, the day of the elections, the 
police had forced the people to go to the polling 
booths, subjected them to systematic search, 
and instructed them how to vote. On this 
subject, the United Press correspondent had 
written that the violation of electoral rights was 
so blatant that even the Principal Secretary of the 
Temporary Commission had been constrained to 
declare that the elections could not be regarded as 
free if the voters were searched ; and the Chairman 
of the Commission had stated that certain reser
vations must be made nbout the way in which 
the elections had been held. There had been 
patrols, American military police, Korean police 
and " volunteers " everywhere. The American 
troops had been placed on a war footing, and even 
the members of the United Nations Commission 
had been "protected". On 10 May, the corre
spondent of France Presse had reported on the 
activities of the Youth Organization, members of 
which had searched the voters and arrested 
suspects. Re'Uter's correspondent had reported 
that, on 10 May, 15 persons had been killed in a 
single district. 

The Seoul correspondent of the New York 
Times had reported the presence in Korean waters 
of an American light cruiser and two destroyers. 
Popular opposition had, ho\vever, been very strong 
so that the United States High Command had 
been forced to admit that the situation was more 
critical than at any time since the beginning of the 
occupation. 

That was the atmosphere in which the elections 
of 10 May 1948 had in fact been held. In addition, 
all the parties and organizations in South Korea, 

resolution fut adoptee par 31 voix contre 2, avec 
11 abstentions. Le representant du Canada a la 
Commission interimaire declara qu'il n'etait pas 
persuade que la majorite de la population de la 
Coree du Sud soit favorable au plan des Etats
Unis. Le representant de l,a Norvege estima que 
!'adoption du plan des Etats-Unis depassait les 
pouvoirs confies a la Commission interimaire par 
l'Assemblee generale. Les representants des Etats 
scandinaves furent d'avis que la question de 
Coree ne pouvait etre resolue sans la presence de 
l'URSS. M. Menon, President de la Commission 
temporaire, declara devant la Commission inte
rimaire que les seuls partisans de la formation 
d'une Assemblee nationale en Coree du Sud 
etaient MM. Syngman Rhee et Kim Sing Koo, 
taus deux representants des grands proprietaires 
fanciers et des hommes d'affaires careens. II 
souligna que beaucoup d'hommes moderes de 
gauche et de droite s'opposaient aux elections, 
qui ne pouvaient qu'accentuer la division de la 
Coree; Le President de la Commission temporaire 
ajouta que celle-ci avait re<;u des plaintes au 
sujet de sa cooperation avec le parti Hangkok et 
que les habitants de Ia Coree du Sud estimaient 
que les elections ne seraient pas lib res, vu I' occu
pation du pays par les troupes des Etats-Unis. 

M. Kisselev fait remarquer que, a la veille des 
elections, les Etats-Unis, allies aux reactionnaires 
careens, eurent recours a toutes sortes de pressions 
politiques. Des patriotes furent emprisonnes, 
500 hommes furent tues, 60.000 policiers et 
d'innombrables pretendus volontaires d'extreme
droite furent mobilises. A Seoul, la loi martiale 
fut proclamce. 

Le 10 mai 1948, jour des elections, Ia police 
fon;ait les habitants a se rendre aux urnes et 
fouillait methodiquement les electeurs, en leur 
indiquant de queUe fa<;on ils devaient voter. A ce 
sujet, le correspondant de I' United Press indiqua 
que Ia violation des droits electoraux etait si 
criante que le Secretaire principal de la Commission 
temporaire ne put s'empecher de declarer qu'il 
ne pouvait y avoir de libres elections, si l'on 
fouillait les electeurs, et que le President de Ia 
Commission declara que, de toute maniere, des 
reserves devraient etre faites sur Ia fa1(on dont les 
elections s'etaient deroulees. Partout l'on voyait 
des patrouilles : gendarmes americains, police 
coreenne et (( volontaires >>. Les forces americaines 
etaient sur Ie pied de guerre et les membres de 
la Commission des Nations Unies eux-memes 
etaient ((proteges». Le 10 mai, le correspondant 
de l'Agence France-Presse signalait les activites 
de !'Organisation de la Jeunesse, qui fouillait les 
electeurs et arretait les suspects. Le corres
pondant de Reuter signalait que, le 10 mai, 
15 personnes avaient ete tuces dans unc seule 
province. 

Le correspondant a Seoul du New York Times 
signalait la presence d'un croiseur Ieger americain 
dans les eaux coreennes, ainsi que de deux 
torpilleurs. Toutefois, I' opposition populairc fut 
des plus fortes, si bien que le haut co~ma?de~e~t 
americain dut reconnaitre que Ia s1tuatwn cta1t 
la plus critique qu'on cut connue depuis le debut 
de !'occupation. 

Telle fut !'atmosphere veritable ~cs electio~s 
du 10 mai 1948. Aussi tons les part1s ct organi
sations de la Coree du Sud, y compris des homme~ 

1009 
64 



including rightists like Kim Koo and Kim Kiusik, 
had boycotted the elections, asserting that the 
true purpose was to dismember Korea. The 
only exceptions were Syngman Rhee, a devoted 
partisan of the United States, and the pro
Japanese group of Kim Sung Koo. Syngham 
Rhee, for his part, had said to a representative of 
the United Press that he represented Korea, and 
that he had against him only the communists and 
unimportant members of the left and centre : 
when the Korean Government was reconstituted, 
it would ask the USSR to evacuate Korea and the 
United Stat es to remain. 

Who was Syngman Rhee ? On 23 June 1948, 
in the Far Eastern Survey the journalist Benjamin 
Weems had recalled that Rhee had returned to 
Korea in 1945 after an absence of 35 years. Rhee 
regarded himself as the representative of the 
provisional Korean Government in Washington, 
and had become, on his return to Korea, the leader 
of a party made up of the enemies of communism, 
landowners, opportunists and pro-Japanese 
elements. At the beginning of 1947, a campaign 
had been started for holding separate elections in 
South Korea. Benjamin Weems added that the 
elections which were held while the Commission 
was in Korea had put into office a large majority 
of extreme rightists; the leftists, including Kim 
Kiusik and Kim Koo, had boycotted the elections. 
Kim Kiusik and Kim Koo had regarded the 
elections as an obstacle to the unification and 
independence of Korea. Such was the report 
given by Benjamin Weems, a man who had lived 
in Korea for 20 years. The Buddhist Society of 
Korea had likewise declared that the elections had 
taken place under the threat of armed force. 

The South Korean police force included 6,000 
men who had served under the Japanese. Demo
cratic organizations were persecuted and there 
was a ban on the democratic Press. Thousands 
of patriots were being imprisoned and tortured ; 
others were fleeing to the forests and mountains 
or taking refuge in North Korea. 

No less a person than the Chief Justice of 
South Korea had told the Commission that if it 
wanted to hold free elections, the system in force 
would have to be reformed ; in particular, the 
police would have to be prevented from inter
fering with the political parties and imprisoning 
people for months on all kinds of pretexts. 

The United Nations Commission must be aware 
of the fact that, during two and a half years of 
United States domination, no democratic measures 
had been taken and the land was still in the hands 
of the big landowners, to whom the peasants had 
to pay exorbitant rents. It was not only the 
peasants who were suffering : workmen and 
employees were in a similar position, as inflation 
and unemployment were rife. It was true that 
there were in South Korea six metallurgical 
factories which, at the time the Japanese left, had 
enough raw materi~l for six years' work. ~ut the 
Americans had shipped those raw matenals to 
Japan. There was in South Korea no security ~nd 
no social insurance ; and speculators were growmg 
rich at the expense of their fellow countrymen. 

On 28 April 1948, Kim Kiusik, chi~f of the 
Leaaue for National Independence, which com

"' 

de droite comme MM. Kim Koo et Kim Kiusik. 
boycotterent les elections, affirmant qu'il s'agissait 
en realite de demembrer la Coree. M. Syngman 
Rhee, homme devoue aux Etats-Unis, et un groupe 
projaponais, celui de M. Kim Sung Koo, firent 
exception a cette regie. M. Syngman Rhee, pour 
sa part, declara a un representant de l'United 
Press qu'il representait la Coree et qu'il n'y avait 
contre lui qtte des communistes et des hommes de 
la gauche et du centre sans grande importance : 
lorsque le gouvernement careen sera it reconstitue, 
il demanderait a l'URSS d'evacuer la Coree et 
aux Etats-Unis de rester. 

Quel est done ce Syngman Rhee ? Le 23 juin 
1948, dans le Far Eastern Survey, le journaliste 
Benjamin Weems rappelait que M. Rhee etait 
rentre en Coree en 1945, apres une absence de 
35 ans. Se considerant comme le representant 
du Gouvernement provisoire careen a Washington~ 
M. Rhee devint a son retour en Coree le chef 
d'un parti qui groupait les ennemis du commu
nisme et aussi les proprietaires fanciers, les 
opportunistes et des elements projaponais. Au 
debut de 1947, commen<;ait une campagne pour 
des elections separees en Coree du Sud. 
M. Benjamin Weems ajoute que au cours des 
elections qui eurent lieu alors que la Commission 
se trouvait en Coree, une tres grande majorite 
de candidats d'extreme-droite furent elus, 
cependant que la gauche boycottait les electiom. 
MM. Kim Kiusik et Kim Koo compris. Ces deux 
personnalites voyaient en effet dans Jes elections 
un obstacle a ]'unification et a l'independance 
de la Coree. Ainsi s'exprime M. Benjamin Weems. 
qui a habite la Coree pendant vingt ans. D'ailleurs, 
la Societe boudhiste de Coree a declare egalement 
que les elections avaient eu lieu sous la menace 
des armes. 

La police de Coree du Sud compte dans ses rangs 
6.000 hommes qui ont servi sous les Japonais. 
Les organisations democratiques sont persecutees 
et la presse democratique interdite. Des milliers 
de pat riotes sont emprisonnes et tortures ; 
d'autres se sauvent dans les montagnes et les 
forets, ou en Coree du Nord. 

Le magistrat supreme de la Coree du Sud a 
declare lui-meme a la Commission que si 1'on 
voulait avoir des elections libres, il fallait reformer 
le systeme en vigueur et notamment empecher Ia 
police d'intervenir dans les affaires des partis et 
d'emprisonner les gens pendant des mois en 
invoquant toutes sortes de pretextes. . 

La Commission des Nations Unies ne pouva1t 
ignorer qu'en deux ans et demi de domination 
americaine, aucune mesure democratique n'avait 
ete prise, la terre continuant a appartenir aux 
grands proprietaires fanciers auxquels les 
paysans payent des layers exorbitants. Ce ne s?nt 
pas seulement les paysans qui souffrent : ouv:·1ers 
et fonctionnaires sont dans la meme SJtuatlOn ; 
!'inflation et le chOmage sevissent. II y a en Coree 
du Sud six usines metallurgiques qui, au moment 
du depart des Japonais, avaient asse~ de matier~s 
premieres pour travailler pendant six ans. ~!ais 
Ies Americains ont dirige ces matieres premieres 
sur le Japon. II n'y a, en Coree du Sud, ni securit~, 
ni assurances sociales, et les speculateurs s'enn
chissent aux depens de leu.rs compatriotes. 

Le 28 avril 1948, M. Kim Kiusik, chef de la 
Ligue pour l'independance nationale, qui groupe 

1010 



prised a whole group of centre and rightist parties, 
had declared that the decision of the Interim 
Committee regarding separate elections was 
illegal. Kim Kiusik had supported the USSR 
proposal for the simultaneous withdrawal of 
troops which, he had said, would make possible 
the unification of Korea. Finally, he had stressed 
the contrast between the progress made in North 
Korea and the deplorable conditions in South 
Korea, where people lived in fear of terrorist 
attacks. Yet no one could claim that Kim Kiusik 
had any particular sympathy for North Korea. 

Though the Commission had been aware of the 
Korean people's opposition to separate elections, 
it had obeyed the orders of the United States. 
In its report, the Commission had noted accu
sations to the effect that it had helped thereactiona
ries, the police, and the United States authorities 
to bully the leftist parties and to create conditions 
such that free democratic elections were out of the 
question. Those criticisms had been all too well 
founded. It was true that the Commission's 
report contained recommendations about freedom 
of speech, of the Press and of assembly, all of 
which were essential for the holding of free 
elections, but the Commission had done nothing to 
ensure those freedoms, so that the elections had 
been held in an atmosphere of unprecedented 
terrorism. Even the Commission itself had not 
been free to make contacts as desired. On 
6 March 1948, a Sub-Committee had investigated 
two cases of arrest of Koreans trying to make 
contact with the Commission. At the request of 
the latter, the Chairman had written to the 
American Commander stating that Koreans 
should be entirely free to approach the Com
mission. How could there be any talk of free 
elections when the Commission itself had to ask 
permission of the Americans ? 

A sub-committee of the Temporary Commission, 
having decided to invite a number of represen
tatives of leftist organizations who were either 
under arrest or under police or military surveil
lance, had applied to the American authorities to 
obtain certain assurances for them. The gua
rantees given were, however, not sufficient to 
satisfy the Korean representatives, all of whom 
had refused the Commission's invitation, thinking 
that acceptance might cost them their lives. 

As regards supervisiOn of the elections them
selves, the nine groups of the Commission, which 
had included incidentally, American officials, had 
inspected only 277 polling centres, or 2 per cent 
out of a total of 13,272. 

The representative of the Seoul Government, in 
the First Committee, had made slanderous 
statements concerning the USSR ; but he had not 
breathed a word about the responsibilities of the 
United States. Yet the latter had one aim only : 
to maintain its troops in Korea in violation of the 
Mosco.w Agreement, and to submit the Korean 
question, illegally, to the United Nations. The 
United Nations had also acted illegally in setting 
up a Temporary Commission. The United States 
had then submitted to the Interim Committee a 

toute une serie de partis de droite et du centre a 
declare que la decision de la Commission interi
rnaire relative a des elections separees etait ille
gale. II se pronon<;ait en faveur de la proposition 
de l'URSS tendant au retrait sirnultane des 
troupes qui, disait-il, serait susceptible de 
recueillir !'approbation unanime des Careens. 
M. Kim Kiusik soulignait enfm le contraste entre 
les progrcs realises tn Coree du Nord et l'etat 
deplorable de la Coree du Sud, oil chacun vit dans 
la crainte des attentats terroristes. Cependant, 
nul ne saurait pretendre que M. Kim Kiusik soit 
anime d'une syrnpathie particuliere pour la 
Coree du Nord. 

La Commission connaissait !'opposition du 
peuple careen a des elections separees; pourtant, 
elle a obei aux Etats-Unis. Dans son rapport, la 
Commission a fait etat des accusations selon 
lesquelles elle aidait les reactionnaires, Ja police 
et les autorites arnericaines a brimer les partis 
de gauche dans des conditions telles qu'aucune 
election libre et democratique ne pouvait avoir 
lieu. En realite, ces critiques n'etaient que trop 
fondees. Sans doute trouve-t-on dans le rapport 
des recornrnandations relatives a la liberte de 
parole, de presse et de reunion, conditions indis
pensables a la liberte des elections, mais la Corn
mission n'a rien fait dans ce sens et, a l'epoque des 
elections, sevissait en realite une terreur sans 
precedent. C' est ainsi que la Commission elle
rneme ne pouvait prendre les contacts voulus. 
Le 6 mars 1948, un sous-comite examinait deux 
incidents relatifs a !'arrestation de Coreens 
desireux de se rendre aupres de la Commission. 
A Ja demande de Ia Commission, son President 
ecrivit au commandant americain, declarant que 
les Careens devaient pouvoir prendre contact en 
toute liberte avec la Commission. Comment done 
parler d'elections libres, alors que la Commission 
elle-meme dut adresser des suppliques aux 
Americains ? 

Un sous-cornite de la Commission ternporaire 
ayant decide d'inviter un certain nombre de 
representants d'organisations de la gauche qui 
etaient, soit en etat d'arrestation, soit surveilh~s 
par la police ou l'autorite militaire, entra en 
rapport avec les autorites americaines pour que 
ces personnalites rec;ussent certaines garanties. 
Celles-ci, toutefois, n'ont pas ete de nature a 
rassurer suffisamrnent les personnalites coreennes 
qui ont toutes decline !'invitation de la Con:miss!on, 
car elles pensaient qu' en 1' acceptant, elles nsquarent 
leur vie. 

En ce qui concerne !'observation des elections 
proprement dites, les neuf groupes de la 
Commission, qui cornprenaient d'ailleurs des 
fonctionnaires americains, n'ont visite que 277 
bureaux de vote sur 13.272, c'est-a-dire 2 pour 100 
du total. 

Le representant du Gouvernernent de Seo~l 
devant la Premiere Commission s'est permis 
de calomnier l'URSS. Mais des responsahilites 
des Etats-Unis, l'orateur n'a pas soufie 1:not. 
Or, les Etats-Unis n'ont en qu'un but : ;10ler 
!'accord de Moscou ne pas evacuer la Coree, et 
sournettre illeoale~ent a !'Organisation des 

!:') • • 

Nations Unies !'affaire de Coree. L'Orgamsat1on 
a commis la nouvelle illeoalite de creer une 
Commission ternporaire. Pu~ le~ E!ats-Unis .ont 
presente a la Commission intenma1re nne rcso-

1011 



resolution regarding separate elections in South 
Korea, the only desire of Wall Street being to 
substitute American domination for that of the 
(;crmans and the Japanese. It was not an 
accident that the United States had proposed a 
10 ye:1r trusteeship and wanted to appoint a 
High Commissioner in Korea. The United States 
had not evacuated its troops, and all the state
ments about the independence of Korea were 
llll'rely a cloak for its real intentionto turn Korea 
into an American colony. 

By means of fraudulent elections, the preliminary 
~·conomic conditions had been created and the 
country split into two parts. But the whole 
1\:orean people demanded the withdrawal of the 
:\merican troops : genuine elections would then 
be held, and a legislative assembly would set up a 
nn tional Government for the whole of Korea. 

Whereas the USSR was striving to remove the 
efl'ccts of Japanese domination, the United States 
(;overnment was striving to stifle Korean demo
cracy. But the Korean people now knew the 
true position : the colonial aims of the United 
Slates were based on strategic and economic 
factors. 

The United Kingdom representative had denied 
l hat the elections in South Korea had been held 
nuder the threat of armed force, and had asserted 
that the statements made by the USSR represen
tatives did not hold water because those represen
tatives had not been on the spot. But if the 
United Kingdom representative had been present 
at the elections, why had he not described the 
terror which reigned in South Korea ? The 
British correspondents knew all about it. As for 
the documents mentioned by the United Kingdom 
representative, they were doubtless products of 
the British Intelligence Service, which had become 
famous since the case of " Protocol M. " 

As regards the text of the joint draft resolution 
submitted by Australia, China and the United 
States (A(C.l/426), the first operative paragraph 
expressed approval of the conclusions contained 
in the reports of the Temporary Commission. 
But, as already pointed out by the representatives 
of the USSR, the Ukrainian SSR, Poland, Czecho
:-.lovakia and Yugoslavia, those conclusions were 
entirely unfounded. What newspapers or other 
publications could assert that the democratic 
freedoms had been guaranteed on the day of the 
elections in South Korea ? The democratic 
newspapers had in fact been banned. 

The second operative paragraph referred to the 
" free will of the electorate ". But the majority 
0 [ the parties and democratic organizations had 
rdused to take part in those " free " elections. 
The fact was that there had been the most 
atrocious terrorism, under the aegis of the 
American occupation troops, and the " free will 
of the electorate " had not been expressed. 

The third operative paragraph contained a 
recommendation to the occupying P~wers to 
withdraw their troops as soon as poss1ble. As 
stated in the Press, the U~SR was about to 
. plete the withdrawal of 1ts troops, but the 
com I . h d Koreans and the world in genera WlS e very 

lution relative a des elections separees en Coree 
du Sud, car les hommes de 'Vall Street ne 
songeaient qu'a substituer leur propre domination 
a celle des Allemands et des Japonais. Aussi 
n 'est-ce pas un hasard si les Etats-Unis ont 
propose l'etablissement d'une tutelle pour dix ans 
et la nomination d'un Haut Commissaire en 
Coree. Les Etats-Unis n'ont pas evacue leurs 
troupes et toutes les declarations relatives a 
l'independance de la Coree ne sont que de la 
poudre aux yeux, le but veritable etant de faire 
de la Coree une colonie americaine. 

Les conditions economiques prealables ont 
ete realisees et la scission du pays a ete effectuee, 
grace a des elections falsifiees. Mais le peuple 
careen tout entier reclame le depart des troupes 
americaines : alors auront lieu de vraies elections 
et une assemblee legislative creera un Gouver
nement national pour toute la Coree. 

Alors que I'URSS cherche a liquider la domi
nation japonaise, le Gouvernement des Etats
Unis tend a etouffer la democratic coreenne ; mais 
le peuple careen sait maintenant a quoi s'en tenir : 
des facteurs strategiques et economiques sont a 
l'origine des visees coloniales des Etats-Unis. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni a dementi 
que les elections en Coree du Sud aient eu lieu 
sous la menace des armcs ct il a ajoute que l'on 
ne pouvait ajoutcr foi aux declarations des repre
sentants de l'URSS, puisqu'ils n'etaient pas sur 
les lieux. Mais si le representant du Royaume-Uni 
s'y trouvait, que n'a-t-il decrit la t erreur qui 
regne en Coree du Sud puisque les correspondants 
britanniques eux-memes en sont informes ? Quant 
aux documents dont a parle le representant 
du Royaume-Uni, il s'agit sans doute d'inventions 
du service de renseignements britannique, celebre 
depuis le« Protocole M >>. 

En ce qui concerne le texte meme du projet 
de resolution commun de l'Australie, de Ia Chine 
et des :Etats-Unis (A/C.l /426), Ie premier para
graphe du dispositif comporte une approbation des 
conclusions des rapports de la Commission 
temporaire. Mais, comme l'ont deja dit les repre
sentants de l'URSS, de Ja RSS d'Ukraine, de la 
Pologne, de la Tchecoslovaquie et de la 
Yougoslavie, ces conclusions sont sans aucun 
fondement. Quels sont les journaux, queUes sont 
Jes publications qui pourraient permettre 
d'affirmer que les libertes democratiques etaient 
garanties le jour des elections en Coree du Sud? 
En fait, les journaux democratiques ont ete 
interdits. 

Le deuxieme paragraphe du dispositif fait .etat 
de la (( libre volonte du corps electoral )), MalS la 
majorite des partis et des organisations democra
tiques n'ont-ils pas refuse de participer. a ces 
elections << libres n ? En realite, il s'est ag1 de la 
terreur la plus atroce, sous l'egide des troupe~ 
americaines d'occupation, et non pas de« volonte 
librement exprimee >>. 

Au troisieme paragraphe du dispositif, il . est 
recommande aux Puissances occupantes de retlrer 
aussit6t que possible leurs troupes: co:nme la 
presse I' a indique, l'URSS est s':r le pomt? achever 
le retrait de ses troupes : mms les Careens et le 
monde entier voudraient bien savoir quand sera 

1012 



much to know when the withdrawal of the United 
States troops would be completed. Instead of 
using a vague term like " as soon as possible ", it 
would be better to specify a date such as 1 Febru
ary 1949. 

In that connexion, the information service of 
the Staff Headquarters of the 21st Corps of the 
United States Army, in a Press survey dated 
14 October 1948, had mentioned that the news
paper Cha Yu Chin Jl;1in had given a summary of 
a meeting held by the National Assembly on 
13 October, in the course of which 40 members had 
submitted a draft resolution calling for the 
immediate withdrawal of foreign troops. The 
resolution also mentioned the establishment of a 
Republic of Korea, in accordance with the General 
Assembly resolution. A protest was made against 
the occupation, which was considered as a step 
towards the establishment of a Trusteeship 
System, and the hope was expressed that the 
United States and the USSR should carry out the 
provisions of the resolution of 14 November 1947, 
dealing with the withdrawal of foreign troops. 
According to the newspaper Cha Yu Chin Min, 
the discussion of that resolution at the" National" 
Assembly of Seoul degenerated into a free-for-all 
brawl and the consideration of the question was 
postponed. Thus, even within the " National " 
Assembly of Seoul, the idea of the with drawal of the 
United States troops was sufficient to cause a riot. 

The fourth operative paragraph of the joint 
draft resolution dealt with the establishment of a 
new commission for Korea and defined the 
functions of that new body. The delegation of 
the Byelorussian SSR categorically opposed the 
establishment of a new commission ; the Koreans 
should be free to decide their own future, without 
the presence of United States troops, and to create 
a fully independent and unified democratic 
State. They had deserved this, after four decades 
of heroic struggle against the yoke of Japanese 
colonialism. 

The Byelorussian SSR delegation categorically 
objected to the whole of the draft resolution 
submitted by the delegations of Australia, China 
and the United States. The adoption of that 

J
i resolution would be an insult to the people of 

Korea. It therefore gave its full support to the 
USSR draft resolution. 

Mr. FRASER (New Zealand) said that the speech 
made by the representative of the Byelorussian 
SSR was simply a mass of purely verbal 
accusations without a shred of evidence to support 
them. In particular, the First Committee had 
been asked to accept a completely unreal picture 
of the United States. However, at a time when 
it could have kept out of the Second World War, 
as the USSR was doing the United States had 
acted in a way which was quite without precedent 
for a non-belligerent country, by helping the 
United Kingdom in its struggle. In spite of the 
small groups of isolationists, President Roosevelt 
had given encouragement and material aid to the 
British Commonwealth. Moreover, when the 
war broke out in the Pacific, the United States 
had borne the brunt of the struggle against 
Japanese tyranny and terrorism. 

achevee !'evacuation des troupes americaines.Au 
lieu d'employer une expression aussi vague que 
« aussitot que possible », il vaudrait done mieux 
parler par exemple du 1er fevrier 1949. 

A ce propos, la revue de la presse du service 
d'information de l'etat-major du 21e Corps de 
l'armee americaine, du 14 octobre 1948, indiquait 
que le journal Cha You Chin Min avait donne le 
compte rendu d'une reunion tenue le 13 octobre 
par l'Assemblee nationale, au cours de Iaquelle 
40 membres avaient depose un projet de reso
lution relatif a !'evacuation immediate des 
troupes etrangeres : mention etait faite de Ia 
creation d'une Republique de Coree conformement 
a Ia resolution de J'Asscmblee generale. Une 
protestation etait elevee contre !'occupation etran
gere, consideree comme un acheminement vers 
l'etablissement d'une tutclle. Le souhait etait 
exprime que les Etats-Unis et I'URSS tinssent 
compte des dispositions de la resolution du 
14 novembre 1947, relatives a !'evacuation des 
troupes etrangeres. La discussion de ce projet 
de resolution a l' Assemblee « nationale >> de Seoul 
degenera en bagarre, selon le journal Cha You 
Chin 1\1in, et l'examen de Ia question fut ajourne. 
Ainsi, meme au sein de l'Assemblee 1< nationale » 
de Seoul, l'idee de !'evacuation des troupes 
americaines suffit a ctecha1ner des bagarres. 

Le quatrieme paragraphe du dispositif du projet 
commun de resolution est relatif a Ia creation 
d'une nouvelle commission pour la Coree, dont les 
fonctions sont indiquees. La delegation de la 
RSS de Bielorussie s'oppose categoriquement a 
la creation d'une nouvelle commission, les Careens 
eux-memes devant Jibrement decider de leur 
avenir en dehors de la presence des troupes 
americaines, et creer un :Etat democratique 
unitaire pleinement independant. Le peuplc 
coreen le merite parce qu'il a, pendant quatre 
decades, Iutte avec heroi:sme contre le joug 
colonial japonais. 

La delegation de Bielorussie s'oppose formel
lement a l'ensemble du projet de resolution de 
l'Australie, de Ia Chine et des Etats-Unis, dont 
!'adoption constituerait une offense au peuple 
coreen. Elle appuie entierement le projet de 
resolution de l'URSS. 

M. FRASER (Nouvelle-Zelande) declare que 
]'intervention du representant de la RSS de 
Bielorussie ne constitue qu'un tourbillon d'accu
sations purement verbales sans la moindre preuve. 
On a particulierement demande a la Premiere 
Commission d'accepter un portrait absolument 
invraisemblable des Etats-Unis. Mais ceux-ci, a 
une epoque oil ils auraient pu rester a l'ecart de Ia 
deuxieme guerre mondiale comme le faisait 
l'URSS, ont adopte une attitude sans precedent 
de la part d'un non belligerant et o~t aide. l,c 
Royaume-Uni dans sa Iutte pour I humamtc. 
En depit du petit groupe d'isolationnistes, lc 
president Roosevelt prodiguait encou:age~cnts 
et aide materielle au Commonwealth bntanmquc. 
D'autre part, Iorsque la guerre eclata dans lc 
Pacifique, les :Etats-Unis supporterent la plt~s 
Iourde part clu fardeau de la lutte contre la tyranme 
et le terrorisme japonais. 

1013 



The exploits of the Hed Army and the Russian 
people_ \You!d certainly not be forgotten by 
postenty, but the USSR had only come into the 
\\·ar in the Pacific two days before the atomic 
bomb brought about the cessation of hostilities. 
New Zealand could not therefore tolerate any 
insults against the United States, whose sons 
had fought shoulder to shoulder with the Aus
trnli::ms and the New Zealanders right up to the 
time when Japan was forced to surrender. 

As for the claim made by the USSR that it had 
forced the Japanese out of Korea, or even that it 
had ddeated the Japanese, the Soviet group 
knew qnite well that the USSR had no military 
grounds for making claims in Korea. It was true 
that the United Kingdom and the United States 
made no claim on the basis of military achievement 
either. What could not be permitted was that 
the policy of a country that had given its wealth 
and its men, both in the Pacific and in Europe, 
should be misrepresented, a country which was 
still helping Western Europe to help itself. New 
Zealand for its part owed a debt of gratitude to 
the united States. 

The Soviet group - for in reality each dele
gation simply repeated what the others had 
already said - had also spoken of terrorism in 
South Korea. But what was happening in North 
Korea ? That Republic might be truly repre
sentative of the people, but the United Nations 
had no means of Knowing whether it was or not. 

Furthermore, it little behooved those who 
considered that every type of revolutionary 
violence was justified in order to overthrow a 
government they considered to be tyrannical to 
plead in favour of legality. For the Soviet group 
there was oni:y one criterion of legalit~ : Soviet 
interests. 

Certain parties in Europe were being danger
ously obdurate : was it to he permitted that 
similar conditions should be imposed upon 
Korea ? The United States hoped for a settle
ment in Korel and no evidence to the contrm;y 
had been pro:iucrd, whereas the USSR, or its 
milit':lry leaders, had bern obdurate. \Vhat then 
could the United Stat<2s do ? Wait until a 
certain Government changed its attitude. The 
United States had turned to the rest of the world, 
that is to say the United Nations, which was a 
higher authority than the Soviet group. The 
United Nations was in fact a supreme court and 
it was the authority of the United Nations which 
was now at stake as well as the fate of the people 
of Korea. 

\Vhere was the proof for the accusations made 
against the United States ? The United Nations 
had received no evidence of ulterior motives on 
the part of the United States nor of the alleged 
rei<:~n of terror in South Korea. Neither had it 
any evidence that there was no reign of t error in 
North Korea, where its Commission had not had 
access. It had of course been said that the Tem
porary Commission had been refused access to 
North Korea because it was an illegal body. But 
what right had any group of countries to take 
upon itself to decide what was legal and what 
'vas not? 

In reality, the only acts of terrorism that had 
been proved in South K?rea had been. pro.voked 
by those who had abstamed from votmg m the 

Sans doute l'histoire n'oubliera-t-elle pas les 
exploits de l'armee et du peuple sovietiques, 
mais I'URSS n'est entree en guerre dans Ie Paci
fique que deux jours avant que la bombe atomique 
n'amenat la fin des hostilites. La Nouvelle-Zelande 
ne pent done permettre qu'on offense les Etats
Unis dont les fils ont combattu cote a cote avec 
les Australiens et les Neo-Zelandais jusqu'au 
moment ou Ia paix fut imposee au Japan. 

Quant a la pretention de l'URSS d'avoir chasse 
les Japonais de Coree, ou meme d'avoir vaincu 
Ies Japonais, le groupe sovietique lui-meme sait 
bien que l'URSS n'a aucun motif d'ordre militaire 
pour elever des revendications en Coree. II est 
vrai que ni le. Royaume-Uni ni les Etats-Unis 
n'elevent non plus aucune revendication sur la 
base de faits militaires. Mais, ce qui est inad
missible, c'est que l'on denature la politique d'un 
pays qui a donne ses richesses et ses hommes, 
tant dans le Pacifique qu'en Europe et qui, 
encore aujourd'hui, aide !'Europe occidentale a 
s'aider elle-meme. La Nouvelle-Zelande pour sa 
part doit toute sa gratitude aux Etats-Unis. 

D'autre part, le groupe sovietique - car en 
realite une delegation ne fait que repeter ce que 
les autres ont deja dit - a parle de terrorisme en 
Coree du Sud. Mais, que se passe-t-il en Coree du 
Nord ? Cette Republique est peut-etre vraiment 
representative du peuple, mais !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies n'a pas eu la possibilite dele savoir. 

D'ailleurs, ceux qui considerent que toutes les 
violences revolutionnaires sont justifiees lorsqu'il 
s'agit de renverser un gouvernement qu'ils consi
derent comme tyrannique, sont mal venus a 
plaider la cause de la legalite ; car pour le groupe 
sovietique, il n'existe qu'un critere de Ia legalite : 
!'interet sovietique. 

En Europe, certains partis font preuve d'une 
dangereuse obstination : permettra-t-on que des 
conditions semblables soient imposees a la Coree ? 
Les Etats-Unis desiraient qu'un reglement 
intervint en Coree : aucun fait n'a ete allegue 
contre cette affirmation, mais I'URSS, ou ses 
militaires, se sont averes intraitables. Que 
pouvaient done fairc les Etats-Unis? Attendre 
qu'un certain Gouvernement vint a resipiscence. 
L~s Etats-Unis se sont adresses au reste du monde, 
c'est-a-dirc a !'Organisation des Nations Unies, 
c'est-a-dire a quelque chose de superieur au 
groupe sovietique. De fait, !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies est !'instance supreme. Or, c'est 
l'autorite de !'Organisation qui est aujourd'hui en 
jeu, aussi bien que lc destin du peuple coreen. 

Ou sont les preuves des accusations Iancecs 
contre les Etats-Unis? L'Organisation des Nations 
Unies n'a aucune preuve des motifs inavouables 
des Etats-Unis, ni d'un pretendu regne de Ia 
terreur en Coree du Sud, ni du fait que la terreur 
ne regnerait pas en Coree du Nord oil sa 
Commission n'a pas eu acces. Sans doute, a-t-on 
dit qne la Commission temporaire s'est ;u ref?s~r 
l'acces en Coree du Nord parce qu elle eta1t 
illegale, mais de quel droit un groupe. de p_ays 
s'arroge-t-il le pouvoir de decider ce qm est legal 
ou illegal ? 

En realite, le seul terrorisme dont on ait true~ 
en ce qui concerne la Coree ?u .sud ?. ete provoque 
par les abstcntionnistes ams1 qu !I ressort des 

1014 



e lection. That was clear from the evidence 
submitted by the United Nations Commission, 
evidence which, though sparse on certain points, 
was all that the United Nations had to go on. It 
was, moreover, impossible to imagine that a 
Commission set up by the General Assembly 
would deliberately distort the facts or would come 
to conclusions without sufficient evidence. If the 
Temporary Commission were considered in that 
light, suspicion . would be introduced into inter
national relationships. The Assembly should 
therefore accept the conclusions reached by the 
Temporary Commission, according to which there 
had only been one type of terrorism in South 
Korea, namely, that brought about by the groups 
opposed to the holding of the elections. As 
for the police, it had not interfered without 
cause and it had proved impartial, as was shown 
by the evidence of the Temporary Commission 
itself. 

The 1\'ew Zealand delegation did not consider 
that the authority of the government of the south 
extended over North Korea. It was self-evident 
that it did not, and the joint draft resolution 
implied nothing of the kind. The resolution 
recognized the republican government of the 
south in the regions over which it had control, 
and hoped that its authority would be extended 
and that an agreement would be reached between 
the north and the south. It was not essential 
that the present Government of South Korea 
should extend its authority over the North. If 
the USSR would ask the United Nations to send 
a commission to North Korea to find out who did 
really represent the people in that area, the two 
government could be merged and elections could 
be held under the new authority which would be 
set up. It was most important that the election 
should be carried out fairly, as had been done in 
South Korea, according to the evidence before 
the United Nations. 

If the members of the Soviet group were to 
produce more facts and fewer unfounded assertions 
their cause would be better served, at least so far 
as the continuation of investigation in Korea was 
concerned. But the fact that they were unable 
to prove the truth of their accusations justified 
the adoption of the joint draft resolution sub
mitted by the delegations of Australia, China and 
the United States and the rejection of the USSR 
draft resolution. 

Mr. CASTRO (El.Salvador) said that the question 
of Korea, whose territorial integrity and unity 
were in danger, was the most difficult problem that 
had ever come before the United Nations. 

North Korea, which was the industrial area, 
was cut off from the rest of the world. The north 
was closely related to the south, which was an 
agricultural region, and only if they were united 
could the political and economic stability of 
Korea be ensured. What was worse, there was 
a potential antagonism, which would eventually 
turn the population of the north into a satellite 
of the USSR, while the south would develop on 
its own. 

That situation had arisen because of one of 
those unhappy compromises made between cer-

temoignages presentes par la Commission des 
Na_tions Unies, temoignages qui, si maigres qu'ils 
pwssent etre sur certains points, constituent 
tout ce dont disposent les Nations Unies pour se 
former une opinion. II est d'ailleurs impossible 
de penser qu'une Commission de l'Assemblee 
generale deformerait deliberement les faits ou 
prendrait des decisions injustifiees : juger ainsi 
la Commission temporaire serait introduire Ia 
mefiance dans les relations internationales. II 
convient done d'accepter les conclusions de Ia 
Commission temporaire, selon laquelle il n'y a 
eu qu'une seule sorte de terrorisme en Coree du 
Sud : celui qu'ont fait regner les groupes qui 
s'opposaient aux elections. Quant a la police, elle 
ne s'est livree a aucune intervention injustifiee et 
elle a fait preuve d'impartialite, selon le propre 
temoignage de la Commission temporaire. 

La delegation de la Nouvelle-Zelande ne 
considere pas que l'autorite du Gouvernement du 
Sud s'exerce dans le Nord. D'ailleurs les termes 
du projet de resolution commun n'impliquent 
rien de semblable - il s'agit la d'un truisme. 
Ainsi, le projet de resolution reconnait le Gouver
nement republicain du Sud, la oil son pouvoir 
s'exerce, dans l'espoir que ce pouvoir s'etendra et 
qu'une entente interviendra entre le nord et le 
sud. Pour ceci, il n'est pas indispensable d'etendre 
a la Coree du Nord l'autorite du Gouvernement 
actuel de la Coree du Sud. Si l'URSS demande a 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies d'envoyer une 
commission en Coree du Nord afin d'etablir 
quelle est l'autorite vraiment representative de 
cette zone, les deux Gouvernements pourront 
etre fondus et des elections pourront intervenir, 
auxquelles presidera la nouvelle autorite. 11 
importe avant tout que les choses soient faites 
regulierement, comme cela a ete le cas en Coree 
du Sud, selon les temoignages dont dispose 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

Si les membres du groupe sovietique 
produisaient plus de faits et moins d'assertions 
extravagantes, leur cause pourrait etre meilleure, 
tout au moins en ce qui concerne une continuation 
de l'enquete en Coree. Mais leur impuissance a 
prouver leurs accusations justifie !'adoption du 
projet commun de resolution de I'Australie, de la 
Chine et des Etats-Unis et le rejet du projet de 
resolution de l'URSS. 

M. CASTRO (Salvador) declare que Ia question 
de la Coree dont l'integrite territoriale et !'unite 
sont en peril depasse en difficulte tous les 
problemes dont !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
a jamais eu a connaitre. 

Le nord de la Coree, c'est-a-dire Ia zone indus
trielle, est coupe du reste du monde. Or ~e nord 
et le sud - ce dernier etant une region agncole -
sont compJementaires et seule leur reuni?n pent 
assurer la stabilite politique et econom1qu~ de 
Ia Coree. II y a plus grave : ii y a cet antagomsme 
latent en vertu duquel la population du nor_d 
deviendrait un peuple satellite de I'~RSS: t.andis 
que le Sud poursuivrait une evolutiOn d1stmcte. 

L'origine de cette situation reside dans l'ur: de 
ces Iacheux compromis conclus par certames 

1015 



tain of the great Powers at the end of the World 
War. Although the USSR had not really contri
buted to the victory of the United Nations in 
Asia, it had not wished to be excluded from the 
final settlement. One of the consequences of 
its last-minute intervention had been the partition 
of Korea . 

\Yhy did the USSR persist in isolating all the 
tcrrilories under its military control from the 
rest of the world ? Why did that Power, which 
hn.d contributed most decisively to the success 
of the Allies in Europe, persist in refusing to 
co-operate in the work for peace, for which a 
programme had been drawn up at San Francisco ? 
The USSR had opposed the most constructive 
resolutions of the Assembly and, in the Security 
Council, it had used its right of veto to excess. 
In the course of the third regular session, the 
USSH. had voted against the most important 
resolutions of the First Committee, such as the 
resolutions concerning Greece, atomic energy and 
disarmament. 

Palestine had been the only question on which 
the USSR had voted in the same way as the other 
members of the Security Council. In general, 
as long as the conflict continued between the USSR 
and the nations associated with it on the one hand, 
and the other Members of the United Nations on 
the other, the success of the United Nations 
remained very problematical. However, it was 
certain that the people of the USSR earnestly 
desired international peace and security, so that 
they could devote themselves to economic recon
struction and enjoy all their rights. 

When the USSR had completed its work of 
reconstruction, an era of prosperity and happiness 
would open up before it, as long as it gave up 
its expansionist aims. That was indeed an 
essential prerequisite for the success of the United 
Nations and the solution of aH international 
problems. In Korea, in particular, national 
unity would eventually have to be restored and 
preliminary temporary steps should be taken to 
that end. 

The delegation of El Salvador would favour 
the report of the Temporary Commission and 
would support the operative part of the joint draft 
resolution submitted by the delegations of 
Australia, China and the United States, which 
provided that a new commission for Korea should 
carry on the work of the Temporar.y Commission. 

With regard to the withdrawal of troops, the 
delegation of El Salvador considejed that the 
troops should not be withd!Uwn from South Korea 
until stability and security had been re-established. 
It was well known that, for more than a year, 
there had been a well-organized army numbering 
at least 170,000 in North Korea. Consequently, 
so long as South Korea did not possess a similar 
army capable of maintaining secu~ity, the troo~s 
which were there should not be withdrawn. His 
deJeaation further considered that the wording 
of p~ragraph 3 was not explicit enough and should 
be altered. 

i\fr PEARSON (Canada) pointed out that the 

C • ;,1·Hee h<>d only a few hours hrfore it in 
OJTl u ' ' '' . 

which to complete its work. In order to help to 

gran des Puissances a la fin de laguerre mondiale. 
L'URSS, bien qu'elle n'efit pas n\ellement con
tribue a la victoire des Nations Unies en Asie 
n'a pas voulu etre absente du reglement final. 
Et l'une des consequences de cette intervention 
in extremis a ete Ia scission corcenne. 

Pourquoi done J'URSS persiste-t-elle a isoler· 
du reste du monde taus les territoires qu'elle 
occupe militairemcnt? Pourquoi cette Puissance 
qui a contribue de la maniere Ia plus decisive 
au succes des Allies en Europe, persiste-t-elle a 
s'abstenir de cooperer a !'oeuvre de paix dont le 
programme a ete elabore a San-Francisco? L'URSS 
s'est opposee aux resolutions de l'Assemblee 
generale les plus constructives, et, au Conseil 
de securite, elle a fait un usage excessif du droit 
de veto. Au cours meme de la troisieme session 
ordinaire, l'URSS a vote contre les resolutions 
les plus importantes de la Premiere Commission 
relatives par exemple, a Ia Grece, a l'energie 
atomique et au desarmement. 

La Palestine a ete la seule question sur laquelle 
l'URSS se soit prononcee dans Je meme sens que 
les autres membres du Conseil de securite. D'une· 
maniere generale, tant que le conflit subsistera 
entre l'URSS et les nations associees a elle d'une 
part, et les autres Membres de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies, d'autre part, le succes de !'Orga
nisation des Nations Unies sera bien problema
tique. Et pourtant, l'on pent etre sur que Ia popu
lation de l'URSS desire vivement la paix, I' entente 
et la securite internationales pour pouvoir se 
consacrer a la reconstruction economique et pour 
jouir de tons ses droits. 

Lorsque l'URSS se sera acquittee des taches de 
la reconstruction, une ere de prosperite et de 
bonheur s'ouvrira pour elle, si, toutefois, l'URSS. 
renonce a ses visees expansionnistes. Car telle 
est bien la veritable condition prealable au succes 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies eta la solution 
de tons les problemes internationaux. En Coree, 
en particulier, i1 faudra reconstituer ulterieurement 
l'unite de la nation et des aujourd'hui des mesures 
interimaires, preliminaires sont necessaires. 

La delegation du Salvador se prononcera en 
faveur du rapport de la Commission temporaire 
et votera pour le dispositif du projet commun 
de resolution de l' Australie, de Ia Chine et des. 
Etats-Unis, en vertu duquel une Commission 
pour la Coree continuera la tache de Ia Commission 
temporaire. 

En ce qui concerne le retrait des troupes, la 
delegation du Salvador considere que les troupes 
ne devraient pas etre retirees de Coree du Sud 
avant que la stabilite ne soit retablie et que la 
securite ne regne dans cette region. En effe~, on 
sait que, depuis plus d'un an, i1 y a en Coree .du 
Nord une armee bien organisee d'au moms 
170.000 hommes. Par suite, tant qu'il n'existera 
pas en Coree du Sud une autre armee capable 
d'assurer la securite, les troupes qui s'y tr?uvent 
ne devront pas etre retirees. La delega~wn .d!l 

Salvador considere d'ailleurs que la redaction 
du paragraphe 3 n'est pas assez explicite et 
devrait etre modifiee. 

M. PEARSON (Canada) rappelle que la Co~
mi~sion n'a plus que quelques heures d~ travarl 
devant elle. En vue de fm:iliLer l'unificatron de b 

1016 



bring about unification and understanding in 
Korea, his delegation would therefore be pre
pared to refrain from speaking at present, if that 
gesture would result in the closure of the general 
debate. 

The CHAIRMAN said that the representatives of 
the Ukrainian SSR and the USSR had placed 
their names on the list of speakers. 

Mr. PJ¥-RSON (Canada) re-emphasized the fact 
that the Committee had very little time left. 
The two representatives mentioned had already 
spoken at length that day and he proposed the 
closure of the debate in accordance with rule 
106 of the rules of procedure. 

Mr. RomoN'ov (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that his delegation was opposed 
to the closure of the debate. He proposed that 
the list of speakers should be closed. 

Mr: ZE'BROW.SKI (Poland) was opposed to the 
motion for closure submitted by the representative 
of Canada. While several speakers had spoken 
against the Temporary Commission's report at 
that meeting, nearly all the speakers had spoken 
in favour of that report on the previous day, but 
that had been no reason for closing the debate. 

The Polish delegation considered that the 
representatives who were opposed to the report 
should be given the opportunity to reply to the 
criticisms that had been made against them. 
Perhaps it would be sufficient if the list of speakers 
were closed. 

The CHAIRMAN put the motion for closure to 
the vote. 

A vote was taken by show of hands. The motion 
was adopted by 35 votes to 6, with 7 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED-AND THIRTY 
SIXTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillol, Paris, 
on Wednesday, 8 December 1948, at 8.30 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. P.-H. SPAAK (Belgium). 

106. Continuation of the discussion on 
the reports of the United Nations 
Iemporary Commission on Korea 
(A/575, A/575fAdd.1 and A/575/ 
Add.2) and of the Interjpi Com.
mittee of the General Assembly 
(A/583) 

Mr. RoDIONov (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the statement made by the 
representative of New Zealand called for comment 
as it had distorted the truth. In an attempt 
to belittle the contribution of the USSR to the 
collapse of Japan, the representative of New 
Zealand had said that the USSR had fought 
only for two days. The facts were well known and 
Mr. Rodionov would refer only to three specific 
points. Firstly, the USSR had entered the 
war on 8 August and the Japanese surrender 

Coree et l'entente dans ce pays, la delegation du 
Canada serait done prete a renoncer maintenant a 
prendre la parole si ce geste devait avoir pour 
resultat d'amener la fin du debat general. 

Le PRESIDENT indique que les representants de 
la RSS d'Ukraine et de l'URSS se sont fait 
inscrire. 

M. PEARSON (Canada) insiste sur le fait que Ia 
Commission dispose de fort peu de temps. II 
declare que ces deux representants ont deja parle 
assez longuement ce jour meme. II propose la 
clOture du debat, selon l'article 106 du reglement 
interieur. 

M. RomoNOV (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare que sa delegation est 
opposee a Ia cloture du debat. II propose que soit 
close la liste des orateurs. 

M. ZEBROWSKI (Pologne) se declare oppose a la 
motion presentee par le representant du Canada. 
S'il est vrai que le jour meme plusieurs orateurs 
se sont prononces contre le rapport de la Com
mission temporaire, presque tous les orateurs 
avaient, la veille, parle en faveur de ce rapport, 
sans que pour autant le debat eut ete clos. 

La delegation de Ia Pologne considere que les 
representants qui sont opposes au rapport doivent 
avoir la possibilite de repondre aux critiques 
formulees contre eux. Peut-etre pourrait-on 
simplement declarer que la Iiste des orateurs est 
close. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix la motion 
de cloture. 

Le vote a lieu a main levee. La motion est adoptee 
par 35 voix contre 6 avec 7 abstentions. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 15 

DEUX-CENT-TRENTE-SIXIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mercredi 8 decembre 1948, a 20 h. 30. 

President: M. P.~H. SPAAK (Belgique). 

106. Suite de la discussion sur les 
rapports de la Commission tempo
raire des Nations Unies pour la 
Coree (A/575, A/575/Add.1 et 
A/575/Add.2) et de la Commission 
interimaire de l'Assemb!ee gene
rale (A/583) 

M. RomoNoV (Union des Republiques soci~
listes sovietiques) declare que !'expose du repre
sentant de la Nouvelle-Zelande appelle des 
commentaires car celui-ci a cteforme la verite 
afin de pouv~ir nier que l'URSS a contribue a 
la defaite du Japon. Le representant de 
Ia Nouvelle-Zelande a declare que l'URSS n'a 
combattu que pendant deux jours. Les faits 
sont bien connus et M. Rodionov se contentera 
de trois points precis. Premierement, l'U~SS est 
entree en guerre le 8 aout, et les Japona1s ne se 

1017 
64* 




